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**^fiidependent Auditor's Report

To the Shareholders of Crystal Insurance Company Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

we have audited the financial statements of crystal Insurance company Limited (the .,compary,,),
which comprises the Balance sheet (statement ofFinancial position) as at 3l December 202:, piont
and Loss Account (statement ofProfit or Loss and other comprehensive Income), statement of profit
and Loss Appropriation Account, consolidated Revenue Account, Related Revenue Accounts,
statement ofchanges in Equity and Statement ofcash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
finalcial statements, including a summary ofsignificant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position ofthe company as at 3l December 2023, and its financial performance and its cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Rep;rting Standards (IFRSS),
the companies Act 1994, the Insurance Act 2010, the Insurance Rules 195g. the Securities and
Exchange Rules 2020 and other applicable laws and regulations.

Basis for Opinion

we conducted our audit in accordance with Intemational Standards on Auditing (lSAs). our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors' Responsibiiities ior the
Audit of the Financial statements section of our report. we are independent ;f the company in
accordance with the Intemational Ethics standards Board for Accountarts, code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) together with the ethical requirements that axe relevant to
our audit of the financial statements in Bangladesh, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA code. we believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements of the current period. These matters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

\-

Risks Our res to the risks
Premium Income
Gross general insurance premiums comprise the with respect to Premium income in respect of
total premium received for the whole period of
cover provided by contracts entered into during
the accounting period.

various types of insurance we canied out
the following procedures:

F The design and opemting effectiveness of
key controls around premium income
recognition process.

) Carried out analltical procedures and
recalculated premium income for the
period.

Given the important nature, connections to other
items to the financial statements and sensitivity
of the item we believe this area pose high levil
ofrisk.

1

Mahfel Huq & Co. is an independent member firm of AGN lnternational, UK. AGN lnternational is a worldwide association of separate and
independent accounting and consulting firms. Each member of AGNoperates under its own local or national name and remains autonomous
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This represents a significant arnount in the

company's Balance sheet (statement of financial
position). Therc is a risk of determining which
costs meet the criteria for capitalization,
determining the date on which the assets is
recognized to property, plant and equipments and

depreciation commences, estimation oleconomic
useful lives and residual value assigned to fixed
asset,

At end of the year 2023, the company reported
lant and

3agn

Risks
At end of the year 2023, the total gross premium
income of BDT 710,737,342 (2022: BDT
684,852,789).

re

) Carried out cut-off testing to ensue

unearned premium income has not been

included in the premium income

F On a sample basis reviewed policy to

ensure appropriate policy stamp was

alfixed to the contract and the same has

been reflected in the premium registcr.

F Ensured on a sample basis that the

premium income was being deposited in

the designated bank account.

F Tested on a sample basis to see that

appropriate VAT was being collected and

deposited to bank through Treasury

Chal1an.

! For a sample of insurzurce contracts tested

to see if appropriale level of reinsurance

was done and whether that re insurance

premium was deducted from the gross

premium.

) Applying specialist judgment ensured if
there is an1 impairment of the reinsurer.

Finally assessed the appropriateness and

presentation of disclosures against relevant
accounting standards, lnsurance Act 1938 (as

amended in 2010), Insurance Rules, 1958 and

other applicable rules and regulations and

idclines

See Note No. 2.21 to the financial statements and FORM-XL
Property, plant and equi nts

Our audit procedures to assess the carrying value

of property, plant and equipments, include thc

following controls testing and substantive
procedures:

) Assessing the design, implementation
and operating effectiveness of key

internal controls over the completeness,

existence and accuracy of property,

plant and equipments including the key

intemal controls over the estimation of
useful economic lives and residual

values;
) Assessing, on a sample basis, costs

capitalized during the ye by
comparing the costs capitalized with the

relevant underlying documentation,

which included purchase agreementsthe value of
2

\

Our response to the risks

We identified the carrying value of propeffy,
plzLnt and equipments as a key audit matter
because of the high level of management
judgment involved and its significance to the
financial statements.
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Risks Our response to the risks
and invoices, and assessing whether the

costs capitalized met the relevant criteria
for capilalization.

F Testing the key controls over the

management's judgment in relation to

the accounting estimates of the

depreciable lives and residual values of
property, plant and equipment.

) Reconcile on a sample basis the

additional capitalized costs lor the year

to the underlying invoices and

supporting documents"

) We reviewed minutes the company's

capitalizations policy for compliance
with IAS 16 and tested the expenditure
capitalized against the capitalization
policy.

F We traced payments to supporting
documents.

We assessed the adequacy of the disclosures of
the fi nancial statements

See note no 2.10, 14.00 to the financial statements and Annexure-A
Estimated liability in respect of outstanding claims whether due or intimated
This account represents the claim due or
intimated from the insured and involves
sjgnificant management judgment and risk of
unde$tatement. In extreme scenario this item
may have going concem implications for the
company.

At end of the year 2023, the reported total
balance under the head of Estimated liability in
respect of outstanding claims whether due or
intimated of BDT 119,813 ,521 (2022: BDT
| {) t^) ,1:\

We tested the design and operating effectiveness
of controls around the due and intin.rated claim
recording process.

We additionally carried out the lollowing
substantive testing's around this item:
) Obtained the claim register and tested for

completeness of claims recorded in the

register on a sample basis.

) Obtained a sample of claimed policy copy
and cross check it with claim.

) Obtained a sample of survey rcports cross

checked those against respective register

balances and in case of discrepancy carried
out fuilher investigation.

) Obtained and discussed with management

about their basis for estimation and

challenged their assumptions where
appropri ate.

! Reviewed the claim committee meeting
minutes aboul decision about impending
claims.

> Tested a sample ol claims payments with
intimation letter, suNey report, bank

3

equipments amounts BDT 251,556,665 (2022:
BDT 286,34i,735).

\
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Other Matter

The lrnancial statements of the company for the year ended 3lst December 2022 were audited by

another auditor "Ahmed Zaker & Co. Chartered Accountants" who expressed an unmodified opinion

on those financial statements.

ag
r\
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Other lnformation

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all of the

information in the Annual report other than the financial statements and our auditors' report thereon.

The annual report is expected to be made available to us after the date ofthis auditor's report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express

any form ofassurance conclusion thereon.

ln connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other

information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with

the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appeaxs to be materially

misstated. When we read the annual report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement

therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with govemance of the company.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements and Internal Controls

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the finarcial statements in

accordance with IFRSs, the Companies Act 1994, the Insurance Act 2010, the Insurance Rules 1958,

the Securities and Exchange Rules 2020 and other applicable laws and regulations and for such

internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial

statements that ale free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability

to continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concem and using

the going concem basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or

to cease operations, or has no realistic altemative but to do so.

Those charged with govemance are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.

4

Our res onse to the risksRisks
statement, claim payment register and

general ledger.

P Finally assessed the appropriateness and

presentation of disclosures against

televant accounting standards, Insurance Act
2010, Insurance Rules 1958 and
other applicable rules and regulations and

lines

See note no. 9.00 to the frnancial statements

mh
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit ofthe Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole

are free from matedal misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that

includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level ofassurance, but is not a guaxantee that an

audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material iq individually or in the

aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on

the basis ofthese financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain

professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identiff and assess the risks of material misstatement ofthe finalcial statements, whether due

to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those dsks, and obtain

audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,

or the override of intemal control.
. Obtain an understanding of intemal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances.
o Evaluate the appropdateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

accounting estimates aad related disclosures made by management.
o Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concem basis of

accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained whether a material uncertainty exists

related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to

continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required

to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements

or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modifr our opinion. Our conclusions are based on

the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or

conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concem.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including

the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and

events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with govemance regarding, among other matters, the planned

scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
intemal confol that we identi$ during our audit.

We also provide those charged with govemance with a statement that we have complied with relevant

ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and

other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with govemarce, we determine those matters that

were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are

therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we

ag
r)n*
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e

determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences

of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In accordance with the Companies Act 1994, the Insurance Act 2010, the Insurance Rules 1958, the

Securities and Exchange Rules 2020 ard relevant notifications issues by Bangladesh Securities and

Exchange Commission, we also repofi that:

a) We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge

and beliefwere necessary for the purpose ofour audit and made due verification thereof;

b) In our opinion, proper books ofaccounts, records and other statutory books as required by law

have been kept by the Company so fa: as it appeared liom our examinations ofthose books;

c) The Company management has followed relevant provisions of laws and rules in managing

the affairs of the Company and proper books of accounts, records and other statutory books

have been properly maintained and (where applicable) proper retums adequate for the

purposes ofour audit have been received from branches not visited by us;

d) As per section 63(2) of the Insurance Act 2010, in our opinion to the best of our knowledge

and belief an according to the information and explanation given to us, all expenses of
management wherever incurred and whether incurred directly or indirectly, in respect of
insurance business of the company transacted in Bangladesh during the year under report
have been duly debited to the related Revenue Accounts and the Statement ofComprehensive
Income ofthe Company;

e) We report that to the best ofour information and as shown by its books, the company during
the year under report has not paid any person any commission in any form, outside

Bangladesh in respect of any its business re-insured abroad;

0 The Statement of Financial Position, Profit and Loss Account (Statement of Profit or Loss and

other Comprehensive Income), Profit and Loss Appropriation Account, related Revenue

Accounts, Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows of the Company

together with the annexed notes dealt with by the reporl are in agreement with the books of
account and retums; and

g) The expenditure was incurred for the purpose ofthe Company's business.

agn
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Dhaka, l8 February 2024
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Partirulars

Reserve and surplus
Reservc fot exceptional Iosses

Profit ald loss appropriatioll ilccolut
Investment tlucfiiation fu nd
Ceneralresove
Total sharcholders equity

Liabilities and provisions

Balance offunds rnd accounts (A)
Firc insurance revenue account
Maring cargo insurance revenue account
Marine hull insurancc revenue account
Motor insurance aevcnue account
Miscellaneous insurence tevenue aocount

Liabilitics (B)
Lease liability
Deposit premium

Dettffed tax liability
Estimat€d tiability in rcspect ofOutstanding clainN whethcr due or
intimated

Amounts due to other persons or bodies carrying on insuEncc business

Sundry creditors

Unpaidrunclaimed dividend
Provision for worker-s prolit participation fund (WPPF)

Total liabilities and provisions (A+B)

'Iotal Shareholdcrs' equity and Iiabilities

H

Crystrl Insurance Company Limited
Balance sheet (Statement of linancial position)

As at December 3l, 2023

Notes
Amount in taka

2023

3.00 1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000

3.00 400,000,000 400,000,000

4.00

4.0t

1.02

4.03

I63 06 51

1,034,61r,106 972,432,566

I

680,307 6 742,57E

872,810,586 865,615,877

1,907,421,691 1,{i38,048,.143

5.00

6-00
7.00

8.00

9.00

10.00

I1.00
12.00

13.0{t

7

590,959.697

59,892,199

126,240 ,',7 9 t)
10,000,000

519,885.963

50,091,567
(6,511964)
9,000 000

84,896,684

78,04t,061

3,261,928

10,755,017

t5,517,904

83,074,095

88,464,522

1.996,589

12,214,805

7,123,289

18,610,675

I17,830,397

1,803,315

1r9,813,521

27 5,66 t.294

136,682,000

2,9s3,718
6,953,013

I1,619,387

t56,2t8,267
4,683,242

152,312,243

1,873

Shareholdersr cquiry and liabilitics
Shareholders'equity
Authoriz€d capital
100,000.000 odinary shares oftk.l0 each

lssued, subscribed and paid up capital
40,000,000 ordinary shares oftk. l0 each tully paid up

2022

2t4,034,728

124,961,2s8

2,618,579



Particulars

Properties and assets

Property, plant and equipments

Advance against land and office Space

Investments

hvestmen! property

Right ofuse (ROU) assets

hrsurance stamps

Amount due from other persons or bodics caffying on insurance

business

Aocrued interest

SuDdry debtors (iDcluding advafices, deposits and prcpaymonts)

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash in hand

BO account balance

Cash at banks on STD accounts

Cash at banks on CD accounts

Fixcd dcposit receipt (FDR) with banks and financial institutes

Total assets

Crystal Insurance Company Limited
Balance sheet (Statement of financial position)

As at Dccernber 31, 2023

Notes

t4.00
15.00

16.00

17.00

18.00

19.00

20.00

Amount in taka

870,365,569 811 4

257,556,665

23,450,000

309,092,814

28,'.l94,a64

20,653,392

1,584,825

138,203,082

t4,165,215
'7 6,261,6st

I 7 122 I

21.00

22.00

1,907,421,691 1,838,048,443

33.00 2s.87 24.31

The accompanying notes fbrm an integral paft ofthese linancial statements

M. Mahfuzur Rahman FCA
ChiefFinancial Officer

ffifl-.
s M Shahidullah

Chief Executive Ofiicer(CC)

Pxrhr D:rnesh
Director

Hoque

-.- 
Director

Signed as per our annexed report of even date

ahmud
Chairman

Howlader Mahfel Huq, FCA
ICAB Enrolment No. 105

Managing Partner

Mahfel IIuq & Co.
Chartered Accountants

8

286,343,73s

12,000,000

264,591,859

30,919,872

12,t36,t73
1,96',7,787

t26,491,49'7

t3,t42,936
63,558,7 56

I 847 6t7

148,625

t02,2t1
28,049,079

2,908,583
'7 t7

231,587

221,296

2t,4t'7,462

20,138,867

Dhaka, 18 February 2024 DVC:
2t02220105AS598757

Net asset Yalue (NAV) pcr share

\-
23.00

23.00

23.00

23.00

24.00

l----ro:x---]



Particulars

Crystal Insurance Company Limited
Profit and loss account (Statement of protit or loss and other comprehensiye income)

For the ended December 3l 2023
Amount in taka

2023 2022

59,297,003 58,160,502
Expense! of management
(Not applicable to any particular fund or account)
Advertisement and publicity
Amortization on lease

Audit fees

Bank charges

Bima mela

Bmnch opening fees

BGTB bond premium and interest
Excise duty
Depreciation

Director's meeting aftendanc€ f€es

Donation and subscription
Fees and oharges

Bangladesh insurance association

Business development expenses (SBC)
Repair and maiotenance

Renewal, registration and other charges

Interest against leases

Profit trdnslerred to profit and loss appropriation account
Total

M. Mahluzur Rahman
ChiefFinancial Officer

Far D lnIEEI ue
Director ?It]r.ectot

Signed as p€r our annexed rcport ofeven dale

18.00

4.02

25.00

40.03

804,910

10,514,284

920,000
275,631

360,631

115,000

1,492,000

37,486,t40
730,400

396,000
r,385,864

100,000

48,889
228,634

4,438,618

951,561

6,199,7 t3
639,500

241,231
800,707

57,500

28,870

t,219,644

31,670,07 7

1,293,600

4,0't 5,907

269,000

100,000

48,889

340,88.1

3 16

t4 1,490,904

1,490,904

146,013,267 130,239,341

206,421,614 I

19,944,842

100,467,78,1

(3,095,971)

12,831,573

\2,0t4,792

(19,695,827)

112,163,022 131

747

I

42,8s0,496 33.995,382

18,456,3912t,4rt 156

206,424,671 189,ri90,747

(8,4r 6,915)

(19

The accoopanying notes form an integral part ofthese tinancial statements

,695,821) (8,416,91s)

,*m{*(
Chicf Executive OIfice(CC)

h d
Chaifinan

,l
Ilowlsdcr Mahfel Huq, FCA

ICAB Enrolment No. 105

Managing Partner

Mahfel Huq & Co.
Chartered Accountants

9

Notes

54.918,782

6t,473,706
2,433,8t4
9,372,t49

Dhaka, l8 February 2024 DVC:
21An201054S598757

Profit/(Loss) trxnsft rred fromi
Fire insurance revenue account
Marine cargo insurance revenue accoullt
Marine hull irsurance revelue account
Motor insurancc rcvenue account
Misccllaneous insuranoc reve,tue account

lnterest income

Olher income

Total

Other comptehensive incomc
Chaiges in fair valuc of the shares available for sale (Investment
fluctuation fLnd)

Total

26.00

27,00



Particulrrs

Opening balance of appropriation account
Net profit for the year

Total

ReseNc for exceptional losses

Gencral reserwe during the year
Provision for companies income tax
Provision for WPPF

Deffered tax (income)/expenses

Dividend paid from last year profit

Balance transferred to balance sheet

Total

Earning per share (EPS)

Crystal Insurance Company Limited
Prolit and loss appropriation account
For the year eflded December 31, 2023

Notes
Amount in taka

2022

50,091,567

146,013,267
50,62r,t43

130,239,34\

196,104,834 180.860.483

136,212,635 130,768,917
4.01

4.03

11,02

13.00

8.00

71 ,073,134
1,000,000

20,065,815

6,9s3,013

(2,8'79,927)

40 000,000

68,485,279

1,000,000

15,700,955

6,201,873

(619,19 r )
40,000,000

59,892,199 50,091,567

196,104,834 t80.860.483

34.00 3.05

The accompanying notes form an integralpa( ofthese tinancial statements

ffikM. Mahluzur Rahman FCA
Chief Financial OtTicer

Farhalla Danesh

Director
Ho

ort ofeven date

DVCI

SNI
Chief Executive Oftlccr(CC)

Howlrder Mahlel Huq, ['CA
ICAB Enrolment No. 105

Managing Partncr
Mahfcl Huq & Co.

Chaftercd Accountants

,DiEctor
Srgned as per ou'r arurexed rep

#

Dhaka, 18 February 2024
7Lr.222A$54S598757

10

2023



Crystal Insurance Company Limited
Statemert ofchanges in shareholders' equity

For the year ended Deoember 31, 2023

Thc board oldirectors at l04th board meeting held ofl l8 February 2024, proposed 7.00% cash divi<Iend and 10.00% stock dividend
for the year cnded 3l Deoember 2023.

Slatement of changcs in shareholders' cquity
For the year ended December 3l ,2022

The board of directors proposed l0% cash dividend for the ycar ended 31 December 2022 after the reporting period

&kiM, Mahfuzur Rahman FCA
Chief Financial Officer

SNI
Chief Executive Offi cer(CC)

Danes
Director

Particulars Paid-up
capital

Reserve for
exceptional

losses

General
reserve

Investment
fluctuation

fund

P&L
appropriation

NC
Total

Opening balance 400,000,000 519,885,963 9,000,000 (6,544,964) 50,09r,567 912,432,566
Changes in farc value ofshares (19 ,69 5,827) (19,69s,E27)

Cash dividend (40,000,000) (40,000,000)
Profit aller ttrx 128,82't,379 t28,827,319
ReseNe for exccptioml losses '7 | ,473 ,',7 34 ('t t ,073,7 34)
Provision for WPPF (6,9s3,013) (6,9s3,013)
General reserve 1,000,000 (1,000,000)

Ctosing balance 400,000,000 590,959,697 10,000,000 (26,240,191J 59,892,t99 t,034,611,106

Particulars Paid-up
capital

Reserve for
exceptional

loss€s

General
InYestmcnt
fluctuation

fund

P&L
appropriation Total

Opening balance 400,000,000 451!400,6E4 8,000,000 1,871,951 50,621,112 911,893,777
Issue ofshare capital

Changes in lare value for shares (8,4r6,9r s) (8,416,915)
Cash dividend (40,000,000) (40,000.000)
Profit alter tax 1t5,t5',1,5',/7 Il5,t57,57 7

IPO expenses

Reserve for exceptional losses 68,485,279 (68,485,279)

Provision fbr WPPF (6,201,8?3) (6,201,E73)

General reserve 1,000,000 (1,000,000)

Closing balatlce 400,000,000 519,885,963 9,000,000 (6,544,964) 50,091,567 972,432,566

Dhaka. 18 Februarv 2024

71

Chairman

L---\-,"5-\l/
A.H.M.?zofliel HoIue



st.
No.

Particulars

A. Cash flo$s lrom opcraling activilics
Collection ftom premium
Other incolrre

Cash paid for managcment expenses, re-insurance, claims, W?pF and
agent commissiorl

Income tax paid including TDS
Net cashflotes frorn operatifig activities

B. Cash llows from investing activities
Acquisition of fixcd assets

Security deposit against land (Rajuk)
Rental income

Irterest reoeivcd during the year including TDS
Dividcnd from listed oompanies shares including TDS
Realised gain and withdrawal from portfolio accounts
Investment in BGTB

Investment in ventura asset management
Investment in listed companies shares

Net cash (ased ifi)/Jlowslrom in|esting actirities

C. Cash flows from finanring activities
Dividend paid
Net cash used it linancing activiti?s

Increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning ofthe year
Cash and cn$h equivalents at the end ofthe year

Net operating cash flow per share (NOCFPS) (note no-3S)

Crystal Insurancc Company Limitcd
Statement of cash llows

For the year ended Deccmber 31, 2023

A.H Mozammel
{Dr.ector

Amount in trka
2023 2022

568,957,62t

246,414

(482,7 45 ,443)

(t 6,799 ,554)

602,011,210

251,888

(346,800,539)

t2 333,515)

69,6s9,098 243,189,044

(23 ,294,7 t7)

\,948,273

31,574,485

6,202,146

2,255,7 60

1 941,994
(r9,798,005) 6,741,233

(39,664,E01) (40 ,2 t2,632)
(39 ,664,801) 12,632)

10,t96,293
I 02 9,829

209,717,666

817 142,t63
1,037,056,122 1,026,859,829

1.7 4 6.08

rt&,
ShahidulldhM. Mahfuzur Rahman FCA

Chief Financial Officer

arhana I)anesh

Dircctor
ue

SM
Chief Executive Officer(CC)

(6,544,062)

(l r,450,000)

2,264,416

41,228,2t7
4 01r 10')

23,968,8'7 4

(10,000,000)

(50,000,000)

14 196,841

Dhaka, l8 February 2024
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Agent commission 28.00
Managemelt expemcs 29.00
Starnp duty

Bahnce of account at the end ofthe year
as shown in the statement of firancial position being reserve for unexpired
risks @ 40% ofpremium income ofthe year for fire, marine cargo, motor and
misoellaneous insurance business and @ 1007o ofpremium income of the year
for maiine hull

ProIit transferred to profit and loss account
Total

Balance of account at the beginning ofthe year

Premium less re-insurances
Premium underwritten
Premium on PSB

Reinsurance premium on PSB

Reinsurance premium ceded

Commission on re-insuranccs
Commissioo earned on re-insurance ceded
Commission eamed on PSB

Total

The accompanying notes fonn an integml part of these financial statements

Crystal Insurance Company Limited
Consolidated reyenue accouDt

For the year ended December 31, 2023

Notes

o?ammel que

- Director
Signed as per our annexed report ofeven date

Amount in taka

2023 2022

122 03 8 t9

2 0t l8 7

l9

142,t63,026 13?,438.973

717,388,239 679,149,953

192,873,299 158,538,r07

47 419 I

151 48 1t 8l

717,388,239 619,149,953

I

ffifi"-

Director

M. Mahfuzur Rahman FCA
ChiefFinancial Officer

S M Shahidullah
Chief Executive Officer(CC)

ahmud
Chairman

Ilowlader Mahlbl Huq, FCA
ICAB Enrolment No. 105

Managing Partner

Mahfel Huq & Co.
Chaltered Accountants

183,986,687

30,048,632
(28,921,484)
(30,364,110)

l19,813,521

t52,342,243

60,132,588

1,893,162

(1,033,636)

(s9 ,1 1 I .7 4t)
152,342,243

(61,s59.997

4 31

59,4s9,666
203,3t |,943

192,502,593 t92,813,299

141

607,34s,49t
103,391,ns 1

(92,82,1,2128)

t2t,712 870

s88,704,s47

96,148,242
(83,951,ss5)

38,078,229

10,073,1t9 8 ,581

32,595,900

Dhaka, 18 February 2024
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Particulars

Claims u[der policies less re-insurances
Claims paid durirg the year

Paid/Adjusted on PSB
Recovered/Adjusted on PSB
Recovered,/Adjusted on reinsurance ceded

Claims outstanding at the end ofthe year

Claims oulstanding at the end ofthe previous year

62,468,280

198,028,807



Crystal Insurance Company Limited
Fire insurance rcyenue account

For the year ended December 31, 2023

Particulars

ABent commissjon 28.00
Management expenses 29,00
Stamp duty

Balance ofaccount at the end of the year
as shoEn in the statement ofFinancial Position being reserve for unexpired
risks @ 40% ofpremium income ofthe year

Profit/(Loss) transfered to profit atrd loss account

Total

Balance of nccoult at the beginning ofthe year

Premium less re-insuranccs
Premium undcrwritten
Premium on PSB

Reinsurance prerniurn on PSB
Rcinsurance prernium ceded

Commission on re-insuranc€s
Commission eamed on re-insurance ceded

Comnlission eamed on PSB

Total

The accompanying notes folm an integral paft ofthese financial statements

Notes
Amount ir taka

2023

141 61,439

t 0 120,447,925

21 ,024,929
93,422,8t3

1{33

84,896,684

84,896,684

71,095

19,944,842 51,918,78r

3r9;36,385 ____2U,602240_

58,322,50283,074,095

212 1,710 207

21 80 18,591,501

t7,229,699
1,364,802

319,336,385 2a1,602,240

rtf,.-
S M Shnhidullah

Chief Executive Offr cer(CC)

M. Mahfuzu r Rahma[ FCA
ChiefFinancial Officer

F Danesh

Director
quc

Signed as per our annexed report of evefl date

Chairman

Howlader Mahfel Huq, FCA
ICAB Enrolment No. I05

Managing Paltner

Mahfel Huq & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Director

6

9

3

3 )39

125 ,458,7'7 6

t13,498
(l I,23

(3,856,82

49,8t6,60
52,400,5

21,409,7 t2
220,t 62

(26,507,281\

83,439,443

30,94',7,541

95,404,505

1,443

83,074,095

89,101,643

300,886,300

t5,203,430
(t 4,146,37',7)

277,t82.t40
14,557,t92

(t t ,7 0t,81 4)

22,401,694
1,6 r 8,887

Dhaka, 18 February 2024
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Claims under policies less re-insurances
Claims paid during the year

Paid/Adjusted on PSB

Recovcred/Adjusted on PSB

Recovercd/Adjusted on rejnsurance ceded

Claims outstaoding at the end ofthe year

Claim: outstandilg at rhe end oI rhe prer ious year

2022



Crystal Insurance Company Limited
Marinc cargo insurance revenue accou[t

For the year ended December 31, 2023

NotesParticulars

M. Mahfuzur Rahman

ChiefFinanoial Officcr

Amount in taka
2023

23 41 7 0

100,376,799 1t4,638,043

Claims utrder policies less re-insurances
Claims paid during the year

Paid/Adjusted on PSB

Rccovered,/Adjusted on PSB

Recolered-/Adjusted on reinsurance ceded
Claims outstanding at the end ofthe y€ar

Chims outsranding ar rhe end of lhc pre\ ious year

Agent conrmission 28.00
Ma.nagement expenses 29.00
Stamp Duty

Balalce of account at the end ofthe year
as shown in the statement of financial position being reserve for unexpired
risks @ 40% ofpremium income ofthe year

Prolit/(Loss) tratrsferred to prollt and loss account

Total

Balance of account at the beginniDg ofthe year

Premium less re-insurances
Prcmium underwritten
P.emium on PSB

Reinsurance premium on PSB
Reinsurance prl-mium ceded

Commission on re-insurances
Commission eamed on re-insurance ceded

Cofimission earned on PSB

Total

The accompanying notcs fonn an integral part ofthese financial statcmcnts.

24,318,301

76,058,497

2'1,062,591

8',1 ,s',t 5 ,452

7 88,46i1,s22

88,464522

r00,467,785 61,473,106

302,139,532

1

8a,464,522

195,1 22 61

'18,572,359 t7 I
14,505,854

4,066,505

302,139,532

.narroa**6'
€-\l'y'
,rOI,

Chicf Executive Ofticer(CC)

Chairn'un

"*"&k

#
Farhana D

Director
A.H

D.irector

Signcd as per diannexed report ofeven date

Howlader Mnhfel Huq, i-CA
ICAB Enrolment No. 105

Managing Parlner

Nlahlel Huq & Co.
Chartered Accountants

63 738

50,843,596

7 59,701

(t3e,242)

\26,507,281)
62,035,335

9,64t,999

26,460,098

885,859

(370,590)

(33,204,460)

63,',t38,222

78,04 r,061

193,414)
,/

236,433,766

26,486,586

{20,624,288\
42,t06

257,604,455

23,562,035

(r7,898,208)

3 511 l0
11,997 ,959

Dhaka, 18 February 2024
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___L12143,4u

73,166,828

112,443,401

2022



Claims under polici€s le$s re-insurances
Claims paid durirg the year

Paid/Adjusted on PSB
Rccovered/Adjustcd on PSB

Recovered/Adjusted on reinsurance ceded

Claifirs uurslanding al lhe end ofthe year
( larrns oulstanding al the end of lhe pre\ ious year

Agent cormission 2g.00
Managemcnt expenses 29.00
Stamp duty

Balance of account at the end ofthe year
as shou.n in the statement of financial position beil1g reservc for unexpired
risks @ 100% ofpremium income of the ycar

Prol'it/(Loss) transferred to profit and loss account

Total

Balanc€ of account at the beginning ofthe year

Premium less re-insurances
Premium underwritten
Premium on PSB

Reinsurance premium on PSB
Reinsurance premium cedcd

Commission on re-insurances
Commission earned o[ r€-insruadce ceded
Commission eamed on PSB

Total

The accompanying notes form an integral part ofthcse finaflcial statemeflts

M. Nlahfuzur Rahman FCA
Chief Financial Oflicer

Particulars

Farhana Mozarnmel ue
Director / Director

Signed as per our annexed report ofeven date

Crystal Insurance Company Limited
Marine hull insuralce reverue account

For the year ended December 3l, 2023

Notes
Amount in taka

2023 2022

3 184 44

3,261,928 r,996,589

3,261,928 r,996,589

(3,09s,971) 2,433,814

6,159,540 6.659.010

1,996,589 3,899,027

1,928 96,589

901.0?2

4t6,072
484,951

6,159,s40 6,659,010

"ffi,#pSM
Chief Exccutive Offi cer(CC)

Chairman

Ab

#
Ilowlader Mahfel IIuq, FCA

ICAB Enrolment No. 105

Managing Partner

Mahfel Huq & Co.
Chart€red Acoountants

2,850,000

150,000

26,929,911
(26;7 15 ,312)

14

526,008

2,282,9',7 5

92

415,043

1,7 52,929

lt2 04'7)

5,114,093

9,0'7'7 ,t68
(8,8 r7,286)

761 s)

4,'134,025

2,329,920
(2,305,992)

829

636,565

Dhaka, 18 February 2024 DVC: ?LAL?.20 r05AS5g075i
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Particulars

Claims under policies less re-insurances
Claims paid during the year

Paid/Adjusted on PSB
Claims outstanding at the end ofthe year

Clarms outstanding at the cnd oflhc previous year

Agerlt commission

Management expenses

Stamp duty

Balance ofaccount at the end ofthe year
as shown in the statement of fina[cial position being reserve for
unexpired risks @ 40% ofpremium income ofthe year

ProfiU(Loss) transferred to profit and loss accoudt

Totrl

Balance ofaccount at the beginning ofthe year

Premium less re-insurances
Premium underwritten
Premiuur on PSB

Reinsurance premium on PSB
Rcinsurance premium cedcd

Commission on re-insurances
Commission eamed on re-insumnce ceded
Connnission eamcd on PSB

Total

Farha Danesh

Crystal Insurance Company Limited
Motor insura[ce rcvenue account

For the year ended December 31, 2023

Notes
Amount in taka

2023 2022

196 13

10,933,155 17 I
2,657,084

8,273,50t
2,s'70

10,755,017 12,21,1,805

2{t.00

29.00

r 0,755,0 t7 12,214,805

12,831,573 9,312,149

39,412,s41

12,214,805

310,195

3r0,195

__ 48!2J,s22

r7,267,056

30,s37 t3

487,454

48'7,454

39,412,541 48,291,522

L

The aocompanying notes form an intcgral part ofthese financial statements.

M. Mahfuzur Rahman FCA
ChiefFinancial Officer

SM
Chief Exccutive Ofncer(CC)

Howlader Mahfel Huq, FCA
ICAB Enrolment No. 105

Managing Partner

Mahfel Huq & Co.
Chaflered Accountants

&il,-
Shahidullah

Directol

4,964 734

5,635,519

101,852

4,t20,t59

12,133,033

90,463

4,964,',734

(3,831,636

186

1,041,681

10,304,107

1,240,'77

25.833,397

2,402,565
(107.643)

2 3

30,352.611

2,580,914
(96,4'77)

Dhaka, l8 February 2024

L7

DVC: 2LA?.Z?AIBIAS5g87 5 7
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AH&.ffi|#flIf
/- Dtector V

Signed as per our annexcd report of even date



Particulars

!'arha ozammel
Director Directora-

Signed as per our annexed report ofeven date

Crystal Insurance Company Limited
Miscellaneous insurance revenuc accounl

For the year endcd December 31, 2023

Notes
Amount in taka

2023 2022

74 IClaims under policies less re-insurances
Claims paid during the year

Paid,/Adjusted on PSB
Recovered/Adjusted on PSB
Claims outstanding at the end ofthe year
Claims outstanding at the end ofthe previous year

Agent conmission 2g,00
Managcment expenses 29.00
Stamp duty

Balance ofaccount at the end ofthe year
as shown in the Statemclt of financial positiol being reserve for unexpired
risks @ .10% ofpremium income ofthe year

Profit/(Loss) transferrcd to Profit and Loss Account

Total

Balrnc€ of Ac€ount at the beginning ofthe year

Premium less reilsurances
Premium underwritten
Premium on PSB

Reinsurirnce premium on PSB
Re jnsuatrcc premium ceded

Commission on rcinsurances
Commission eamed on rc-imwance ceded

Corunission eamed on PSB

Total

The accompanfng flotes form an integral part ofthese financial statemeots

M. Mahfuzur Rahman CA SM
ChiefFinancial Officer

20,029,192 l2 12,s57

4,019,346
16,009,329

518

12,014,192

- so34o;r40

7,123,2E8

38,869,760

39,017,935
50,222,101

(49,128,835)
(r,301,44 r)

15,517,904 7,123,289

1,t23,289

9,240,s23

27,153,779

5,282,69s

l7,808,222
18,831,286

53,rr8,181
(51,949,004)

(2,192,242)

L

92 862

27,153,779

Ilowlader Mahfel Huq, FCA
ICAB Enrolment No. 105

Managing Parher
Mahfel Huq & Co.

Chartered Accountants

199,844

r,898,796
2,083,640

(2,025,665)

991 ,424

129,7 45

696,633
(663,046)

199,8,14

( 1,685,766

1,855,423

10,256.641

492

444,4t5
117 3,8r8 639

)44 ))1

Dhaka, l8 February 2024 Dvc, ?.t 0zl'101 05As598757

Chief Executivc Officer(CC)

t 5,547 ,904
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Crystal Insurance Company Limited
Notes to the financial statements

As at and for the year cnded 3l st December. 2023

1.00 Generalinformation
l.0l Legal form ofthe Company

crystal lnsurarca company Limited (CICL) (the "company") was incorporated as a public limited
oompany on llth November, 1999 under the Companies Act, 1994 having registered office in
Bangladcsh CICL obtaincd permission to commence insurrmce business from Chief Controller of
Insurance. Directomte of Insrrrance, and Govemment of the Peoples Republic of Bangladesh on 23rd
March, 1999. The Principal place of business ofthe company is at DR Tower (l4th Floor), 65/2/2, Box
Culvert Road, Purana Paltan, Dhaka-1000, Bangladesh which is also the registered office ofthe company.
GICL is engaged in non-life insurance business within the meaning ofthe Insurance Act, 2010.

1.02 Principal activities and nature of operations
The principal activities of the company is to offer geneml insurancc products that irclude fire insurance,
marine hull and cargo insurance, aviation insuranoe, motor insLlrance and miscellaneous insuraace- These
insurances provide protection against damage to policy holder's assets ifdamage occurs liom risk covered
by policy. Premium income is the primary source ofrevenue for the company.

1.03 Reportirg period
The financial statements ofthe company cover one calcndar period starting ftom lst January 2023 to 3lst
December.2023.

1,04 Date of financial statcments authorized for Issue
The Financial Statements of the company for the period ended December 31, 2023 wers authorized for
issue on lEth february 2024 in accordance with a resolution ofthe Board ofDirectors.

2.00 Summary ofsignilicant accounting and related policies
2.01 Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on going concem and accrual basis under the histo cal cost
convention The preparation and presentation of the financial statements ancl the disclosure of inlbrmation
have been made in accordance with the Insurance Act 1938 (as amended in 2010), the Insurance Rules
1958 and in conformity with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), the Companies Act
1994, the Securities and Exchange Rules 1987, th€ listing rules of Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited antl
Chittagong Exchange Limited and other applicable laws and regulations in Bangladesh.
Balance sheet (statement of financial position) has been prepared in accortlance with the regulations as
containod in paft-l ofthe first schedule ofthe Insurance Act 1938 and as per Form "A" as set forth in part.
II ofthat schedule. Profit and loss account (statement ofprofit or loss and other comprehensivc income)
and Profit and loss appropriation account has been prepared in accordance with thc regulations contained
in part-I of the second schedule and as per Form "8" & "c" as set forlh in part-Il of that schcdule
respectively ofthc Insurance Act, 1938. Revenue accounts ofeach class of general insurance business has
bcen prepared in aocordance with the regulations as contained in part-l of the third schedule and as per
fort "F" as set forth in Part-II ofthat Schedule ofthe lnsurancc Act, I938. The olassified summary ofthe
assets has been prepared in accordance with Folm "AA" as set tbfth in Part-II ofthe tirst schedule ofthe
lnsurance Act 1938. The cash Flow Statement has been included as per requirements ofthe Securities aIId
Exchange Commissions Rules 1987 as welt as guidelines ofIAS-7.

2.02 Going concern
The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on a going concem basis, which contemplated
the realization of assets and the satisfaction of liabilities in the normal course of business. The
accompanying financial statements do not include any actual or proposed adjustmcnts that would rcsult in
Crystal Insurance Company Limited being unable to continuc as a going concem.

C
a
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2.03 Accounting estimates
Preparation of th. financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies arrd reported amount of assets and liabilities, Incofre
and expenses. The estimates and underlyirg assumptions are based on historical expedence and various
other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstance. the results of which fbrm the
basis of making the judgments about canling values of assets and liabilities that arc not readily apparent
from other sources. While management believes that the amount included in the financial statement reflect
the oompany's best estimates and assumptions, actual rssult coL d iliffer from estimates.

2.04 Materiality and aggregation
Each matedal itcm considered by management signilicant has been presented separately in the financial
statement. No amount has hecn set offunless Crystal Insurance Company Limited has legal right to set off
the amounts and intends to settle on a net basis. lncomc ancl Expenses are prcsented orr a n€t basis only
when permitted by relevant accounting standards.

2,05 Comparative inlbrmation
Cc.rmparative iflformation has bee[ discloscd in respect of thc period ended 31 December, 2023 for all
nlune cal data in the finansial statements and also for the narrative and descriptive infomation when it is
relevart for bettcr understanding of the curent period's financial statements. Prior period figures have
bccn restated, reclassified and reananged whenever considered necessary to ensure comparability with the
current year.

2.07 Functional and presentation currency
The financial Statements are prcsented in Bangladeshi Taka which is tho company's functional currency
except indicated otherwise.

2.08 Status ofcompliance with IAS and IFRS
The Financial reporting standards that are applicable/not applicable for thc financial
period, include the following:
IAS I Presontation ofFinancial Statements
IAS 2 Inveutories
IAS 7 Statement ofCash Flows
IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors
IAS l0 Events aftq the Reporting period

IAS ll ConsrruclionContracrs
IAS 12 lncome Taxes
IAS l6 Propefty. Plant and Equipmenr
IAS 19 Employ€e Benefits
IAS 20 Accounting for govemment grants and disclosure ofgovernments assistance
IAS 2l The effect ofchange in foreign exchange rates
IAS 23 Borowing cost
IAS 24 Rclated Party Disclosures
IAS 26 Accounting and Reporting by Retirement Benefit plans

IAS 27 Consolidated and separate financial statements

statements for the

N/A
Applied
Applied
Applied
N/A
Applied
Applied
Applied
N/A
N/A
N/A
Applied
Applied
N/A

20

2.06 Lease (IFRS-16)
crystal Insurance company Limited, as a leasee, recognize a Right of use (RoU) assets representing its
right to use ofthe underlying leased assets and corresponding lease liability representing its obligation to
make pa),ments for office rent agreements. The RoU assets and Lease Liability are recognize in the
financial statements considcring the incremental borrowing rate.
The ROU asset is depreciated using the staight line method from the beginning to the enrl ofuseful life of
the ROU asset or end ofthe lease term.
The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are adiusted for
monthly paymcnts.

/w<*_



IAS 32 Finanoial Instruments: Presentation 'it

IAS 33 Eamings per Share Applied
IAS 34 lnte m Financial Reporting Applied
IAS 36 lmpairment of Assets Applied
IAS37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets Applied
IAS 38 Intangible Assets Applied
IAS 40 Investment Propcrty Applied
IAS 41 Agriculture N/A
IFRS 2 Share based payment N/A
IFRS 3 Business combination N/A
II'RS 4 lnsurance Contracts

IFRS 5 Non-curents assets held for sale and discontinued operation N/A
IFRS 6 Exploration for and evaluation of mineral resources N/A
IFRS 7 Financial inskuments: disclosurc
IFRS 8 Operating Segments Applied
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments *
IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement Applied
IFRS 16 Lcases Applied
* The management of Crystal Insurance Company Limited has followed the principles of IAS & IFRS
consistently in the preparation of the financial statemcflts to that extent as applicable to ilsurance
companies. Some ofthe standards have not been complied with, about which IDRA has special guideline.
Departures from IAS/IFRS have been explained in note 2.33.

2.09 Components ofthe financial statements
Components of the financial statements includes the following as per the Insurance Act 1938 (as

ammended in 2010) and IAS-1 "Presentation ofFinancial Statements":
a) Balance shcct (Statement offinancial positior) as at December 31,2023;
b) Profit and loss account (Statement ofprolit or loss and other comprehensive income) for the year ended
December 31, 2023;
c) Profit and loss appropriation account for the year endad Decarnbe( 31,2023:
d) Staternent ofchanges in cquity fbr the year ended Decembet 3l,2023;
e) Statement of cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2023;
f) Consolidated revenue account for the year ended December 31, 2023;
g) Fire insuance revenue account for the year ended Decembet 31,2023;
h) Marine cargo insuranoe revenue account for the year ended December 31,2023;
i) Marine hull insurancc revenue accomt for the year ended Decembet 31,2023,
j) Motor insurance revenue account for the year endad December 31,2023;
k) Miscellaneous insuraflca rcvenue account for the year ended December 3 l, 2023 and
l) Notes comprising a summary ofsignificant accounting policies and other explanatory infomation to the
accounts for th€ year ended December 31, 2023.

2.10 Property, plant and equipment
i) Recoglition and measurement
Property, plant and equipment arc recognizcd if it is probable that futule economic benefit associatcd with
the asset will flow to the Company and cost ofthe asset can be measured reliably and the asset is available
for use. ltems of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losscs.

Cost includes expenditurc that is directly attributable to the acquisition of thc asset. The cost self-
constructed assets includes the cost of material and direct labor, any other costs directly attributable to
bringing the asset to a workiag condition for its intended use and the cost ofdismantling and removing the
itcms and restoring the site on which they are located.

Gains and losses on disposal of itcms of property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing the
proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount ofpropcrty, plant and equipment. When revalued assets

are sold, the relgvant amount included in the revaluation reserve is transferred to retained eamings.
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ii) Subsequent cost
The cost of replacing a componert of an items of property, plant and equipment is recognized as an

addition to asset if it is probable that the future economic benefits associatod with the part will flow to the
company and its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced compon€nt is de-

recognized.

iii) Depreciation
Depreciation is charged on straight line basis. Depreciation is charged on newly acquired assets from the

date when asset is available for use in the manncr intended by managcment. In case of disposal,

depreciation charged up to the date ofdisposal. The rates ofdepreciation are fumished below;
Category of assets Rate of Depreciation
Furniture and fixtures 10%

Office equipments 15%
Office decoration 10%
Sundry sssets 20%
Motor vehicles 20%
Office Spaces 5%

iv) De-recognition
An item of property, plant and equipment is de-recognized upon disposal or when no future economic

benefits are expected ftom its use. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset is included in
the Profit and Loss Acoount (Statement of Profit or Loss and other Comprchcnsivc lncome in the period
the asset is de-recognized.)

Y) Impairment of assets

The carrying amounts of the company's non financial assets ai:e reviewed at regular interval to determine
whether there has any indication of impairment ofan asset.

An impaiment loss is recognized if the carrying amount ofan asset or its cash generating unit excaeds its
estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognizcd in the statement of comprehensive
income. Considering the present conditions of the assets, management concludes that there is no such
indication exists.

2.12 Valuation of assets

The valuc of all assets as at 3l Deccmbcr, 2023 has bccn shown in the Balance Sheet and in the classified
summary of assets on "Form AA" annexed, which has been reviewed and the said assets have been set

forth in the Balance Sheet on amounts at their respective book value which in the aggrcgate do not exceed

their aggregate market value.

2.13 lnyestment in shares and securities
Company has invested in different types of financial assets. Investment in shares are recorded at fair value
plus transaction cost. Invcstmcnt Fluctuation Fund , accumulates or is adjusted for unrealized gains or
losses . Realized income, gains, losses generated lrom the invcstmcnts is crcditcd to thc Profit and Loss
Accorlnt. Investment in FDR is recognized at cost and interest income from such FDR is recognized in
Statemcflt ofProtit and Loss and Comprehensive Income on an accrual basis.

2.14 Cash aDd cash equiYalents
Cash comprises cash in haud, demand deposit, cash equivalents on short tenn, highly liquid investments

that are rgadily convertible to know amounts of cash and those which are what to an insignificant risk of
changes in value. Cash and cash equivalents are not restdcted in use and accordingly cash in hand, FDR
and bank balances have been considered as cash and cash equivalents.

2.11 InYestment Property
Company's property, plant and equipment which are held to eam rental income have been classified as

Investment Propefiy as per IAS 40 and accounted lbr under cost model i.e., the asset is measured at cost

less accumulated depreciation.

22

nn+c_



2.15 Statement of cash flows
The statement of cash flows has been prepared in accordance with IAS-7 and the cash from the operating
aslivities has been presented usiDg direct method.

2.16 Reserve or contingencies accounts
i) Reserve for exceptional losses
In line with 4th Schedule of the Income Tax Act 2023, to meet the exceptional losses, CICL sets aside
10% ofthe Gross Premium lncomc ofthe period in which it is sot aside from the balance ofthe profit to
the reserve for exccptional losses.

ii) General reserye
Transfer to General Rescrve from profits is done on a lump sum basis as management deems fit. A
general reserve is a reserve, which is created from appropdation of profits. The aim of creating a general
reserue is to provide additional working capital or to strangthen the cash resources of the business out of
profits and equalizing the rate ofdividend in the periods in whiah distributable profits are inadequatc.

2.17 Deposit premium account
Premium deposit accaunt represents amount of premium deposited with the company against oover notes
for which policies are yet to be issued up to thc end ofthe period.

2,18 Provision lbr liabilities
According to IAS 37: "Provision, contingent Liabilities and contingent Assets" the company recognizes
the provision when the Company has a legal or constructive obligation as a result ofpast event and it is
probable that an outflow ofeconomic benefit will be required to settle the obligations.

2.19 Branch accounting
Crystal Insurance Company Limited now has (40) forty branches with no overseas branch as of3t
December, 2023. Accounts of all branches have been consolidated (aggregated) at the head office ftom
which these financial statements are drawn up.

2.20 Segment rcporting
A business segment is a distinguishable component of the company that in provicling services that are
subject to risks afld retums that are different liom those of other business segments. The company
accounts for segment repolting of operating results using the classes of busiress. The performancc of
segments is evaluated on the basis of underwriting results of each segment. The company has four
primary business scgments for reporting purposes namely fire, marine, motor and miscellaneous.

2.21 Revenue recognition
l. Premium is recognized when insurance policics are issued. The sum ofpremium income as appeared iu
classified revenue accounts is net of the refund made, re-insurance ceded and rc-ins[arce premium on
public sector business.
2. The premium in rcspect of company's share of public soctor insurance business (PSB) is accounted for
in the period in which the relevant statement is received from Shadharan Bima Corporation (SBC).
3 Amounts received against issue of cover notes are recognized as income at thc earlier of cover notes
converted into policies or after expiry ofcover notes in acaordance with SBC,s circular.
4, lnterest on fixed deposit receipt (FDR), account and bonds are recognized as revenue on accrual basis.
5. Income from marketable securities is accounted for at acfual amount eamed and received ou its
disposal.

2.22 Proyisions relating to collection ofpremium
The company has complied with the section 18 of the Insurance Act, 1938 (as amended in 2010) as

applicable in regard to provision ofcollection of premium.
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2.23 Allocation oftotal management expenses
Total related management expenses havc been allocated among the different revenua aocounts on pro-rata
basis of their respecTive gross premium income.

2.24 Income tax
Income tax expense is recognized in the profit and loss approp ation account.

i) Current tax
Current tax is the expected tax payable on taxable income for the period, based on tax rutes (and tax laws)
which are enacted at the rcporting date, including any ad.justment tbr tax payable in previous periods.
Provision for income tax has been made at best estimate keeping in view the provisions of lncome Tax
Act 2023 and amendment made thereto from time to time. Applicablc rate of income tax for the compaDy
rs 3'7 .5%.

ii) Deferred tax assets / liabilities
Company recognizes deferred tax as per IAS-12 on the temporary difference between written down value
ofasscts. Defered tax has besn included in cunent pcriod accounts.

2.25 Emptoyees details
During the period ended 31 December,2023, total 317 person are employed. AII employees are fllll{ime
and no employees are on contractual basis. Information ofthe employees ven below

No. of employees' received salary more than Tk. 3,000/: per month
No. of employees' received salary less than Tk. 3,000/= per month
No. part time employees are employed in the company.

340

Nil
Nit

2.26 Employee benelits
Crystal insurance Co. Ltd. offers a number of benefit plan for all permanent Employees of the company
which includes contuibutory provident fund, workers profit participation fund, incentive bonus, group life
sch€me (GLS) and carlmotor cycle loan scheme which have been accouflted for the accordance with the
provision oflntemational Accounting Standard IAS 19 (Employee Benefits).
(i) Provident fund
Company operates a recognized provident fund. Pennanent employees ofthe Company are eligible for
the said providcnt fund. Employees of the company contribute 10% (tcn percant) of their basic salary and
the employer raakes a similar contribution. The provident fund is wholly administered by the Boad of
Trustees and no part ofthe fimd is ilcluded in the assets ofthe company.
(ii) Group Insurance Policy
The company has been operating a group insumnce policy for all its permanent €mployees for the l'amily
assistanoe after death of any employee's as pcr Group insurance Policy terms and condition.
(iii) Workers profit participation fund (WPPF)
The Board of Directors of Crystal Insurance Company Limitcd in its 8lst meeting held on 5 March, 2018
decided to introduce workers' profit participation and welfare frmd (WPPF) with effect ftom lst January,
2019.
(iv) Gratuity
The company has initiated a t'unded gratuity scheme. The fund is in process for approval by the National
Board of Revenue (l"lBR), and will bc administered by the Board of Trustees. Employees are entitlcd to
benefit at a graduated scale based on the lcngth of service that completed 5 periods. When the fund is
approvcd by NBR, CICL will start conhibution to the fund and recognize it the finaocial statements.
(v) Other benefits
In addition to the above, Crystal Insumflce Company limited providing other benefits to its employees like
incentive bonus, group life scheme (GLS), carlmotor cycle loan scheme subject to fltlfillment of certain
tems and conditions.

2.27 Others
Figures have been rounded ofTto the nearest taka and previous period's figrues have been re-afianged,
whcrever necessary, for the purpose ofcomparison.

:lw

2022
3t7
Nil
Nil

,,@\

2023
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2.28 Earning per share

Eamings per share have been calculated in accordance with International Accounting Standards 33:
Eamings Per Share, and shown on the face of profit and loss appropriation accoult and computation
shown in note 34.00.
Weightcd average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year
This rapresents the numbcr ofordinary shares outstanding at the beginning ofthe year plus thc numbe. of
ordinary shares issued dudng the ycar mulriplied by a time weighting factor. The time-weighting factor is
the numbers of days the specific shares are outstanding as a proportionate of the number of days in thc
year.

Diluted earnings per share
Diluted EPS is calculated if there is any commitment for issuance of equity shares in foreseeable future,
i.e., potential shares, without inflow ofresources to the Company against such issue. There was no such
cornmitment during the year and accordingly no dilution is required in the period December 31, 2023.

2.29 Prohibition of Ioans
Company has not granted any loan or temporary advance to any firm or company in which any director,
auditor, officer, managcr, achrary of the company or lbmily member of these people has any interest as
propdetor, partner, director, manager or mamging agent without prior approval ofthe board ofdirectors.

2.30 Related party disclosure
Crystal lnsurunce Company Limited, in normal course of business, cafiied out a number of transactions
with other entities that fall within the definition ofrelated parly as per "Intemational Accounting standard
24: Related party Disclosures". All transactions involving rclating parties arisiflg in normal course of
business are conducted on an am's length basis a commercial rates on the same terms and conditions as
publishable to the third parties. Detailcd disclosures have been presented in note 40.00,

2.31 Event after the reporting period
Proposed dividend
The proposed dividend is not recognized as a liability in the statement of financial position in accordance
with "IAS 10: Events after the rcporting period". Dividend payable to the oompany's shareholders are
recognized as a liability only when declared and the shareholders right to receive payment is established.
Thc dividend proposed after the balancc sheet datc but before the financial statements are aulho zed for
issue, is tliscloscd in the notes to tha flnancial statement.

All material events occuring aftcr the reporting pe od has beon considered and where necessary, adjusted
for or disclosed in the note.

2.32 Risk factors relating to the company
The vital t'actors ensuring sourd health of a insurance company are identifuing, measuring, monitoring
and controlling various O?e of risks. Crystal Insurance Company Limited (CICL) is increasingly focusing
on development of appropriate risk management framework tbr managing risks ofthe organization.
a) Operational risk management
Operational risk focuses on how things are accomplished within an organization and not necessa ly hat is
produced or inhcrent within an industry. These risks are oftcn associated with active decisiol1s relating to
how the organization functions and what it p oritizes. While the risks are not guaranteed to result in
failure, lower services, or higher management costs, they are seen as higher or lower depending on various
internal management decisions.

Mitigation of operatioral risk
l. Crystal Insutance Company assesses its operations and activities against a menu of potential
operational risk vulnerabilities.
2. Risk mapping identii/ the key steps in business processcs, aotivities and organizational functions. Risk
mapping can reveal individual risks, risk interdependencies, and areas of control or risk managcmcnt
weakneSS.

3, Risk indicators are statistics and,/or metdcs, often financial, which can provide insight into risk
position of insurance industry.

25 ,rwnL



4. The use of data on historical underwriting loss experience could provide mealingful information for
assessing its exposure to oparational risk and developing a poticy to mitigate the risk.
b) Liquidity risk
Liquidity is the ability to meet expected and rnexpected demands for cash. Specifically, it is a company's
ability to meet the cash demands of its policy and contact holders without suffering any (or a very
minimal) loss. The liquidity profilc ofa company is a function ofboth its assets and liabilities. Liquidity
risk is inherent in the hnancial services industry and one must understand measure, monitor and manage
this risk.
Mitigation of liquidity risk
1. Adhere to the lines of authority and responsibility that management has established for managing
liquidity risk.
2. Oversee the implemcntation and maintenaflce of management infomatiol and other systems that
identify, measure, monitor and control the liquidity risk ofCICL; and

3. Establish effective internal qontrols over the liquidity dsk managcment process and ensurc that the
same is communicated ro all omcials
c) Market risk
Market risk is the risk of losses in positions arising from movements in market prices. The most
commonly used types of market risk are; Equity risk, Intenet rate risk Currency risk, Commodity risk,
Margining risk, Shape rislq Ilolding period risk, Basis risk etc.

Mitigation of market risk
l. Implemcnt the market risk management policies:
2. Overscc the development, implementation and maintenance of an appropriate MIS that identiti
measurc, monitor, and control market risk.
3. Establish effective intemal controls to monitor and control market risk.
4. Establish and utilize a mcthod for accurately measudng the market dsk; and
5. Monitor and control thc nature, composition and quality of the company's seaurities portfolio and
ensue that the securities pofifolio is soundly and consenatively valued.
d) Underwriting risk
Underwriting risk refers to the potential loss to CICL emanati[g from faulty underwdting. The same may
affect the solvency and profitability of the company in an adverse manner. Underwriting is a critical risk
mitigation mechanism adopted in the insurance industry. The process helps in deciding the appropriate
premium for an insured. The underwriter needs to matah the premium received with the claims paid with
an eye on profitability. ln the event of a dichotomy between the two, with the premium received uot
suflicient enough to cover the claims, the company is confronted with the probability of loss.

e) Re-insurance risk
Re-insruance risk refe$ to the inability of the ceding company or the primary insurcr to obtain insunnce
from a rcinsurer at the right time and at an appropriate cost. Insurers tansfer a part of thet portlblio to a
reinsurer in exchange for a premium, However, the unavailability ofreinsurance at tha right tima and cost
has ramifications for the ceding company. A dcfault on the part of the reinsurer can lead to adverse
impacts on thc profitability and solvency ofthe ceding insurer.

f) Environmental and social risk
Environmental sk, however, prcsents many difficulties to the insurance industry, espccially when the
focus is on the so-called gradual pollution phenomena, which are characterized by: factual uncertainty and
long tems effects. Environmeutal risk is a peculiar one, given that it includes componants of both factual
and legal uncertainty. Given the complexity of modern production technologies, problems of adverse

sclcction could be widely present in eflvironmental iusurance sottings, whenever the classification of
every specific risk undertaken is not accuately performed by the insurer. Moral hazard phenomena are
also seriously involved in this context. lt is easy to understaad how the industry could eroneously
perceiye the insurance coverage and the insurance prernium.

Mitigation of environmental and social risk
l. At the time of cover noting, all environmental issues rclevant to the proposcd busincss activity has

been determined.

2. Once the enviroflmental risk are identified, these are evaluated based on Guidelines ofIDRA.

26

//t11L



\-

3. After evaluation ofthe environmental risk CICL incorporate this business as a risk-associated zone.
g) Strategic Risk
Strategic dsk is the risk that failed business decisions may pose to a company. Stmtegic risk is often a
major factor in detemining a company's worth, pafiicularly observable if the compafly experience a sharp
decline in s short period of time.
Mitigation of Strategic Risk
l. Identify the risks categories such as industry, technology, brand, competitors, customers, project and
regulations etc.

2. Mapping the risks to provide visual reprcscntation of associated risks across the categories and

criteria.
3. QxantiR ing the risks with a view to express those in monetary term.
4. Prioritizing the risks as per their significance and impact.
5. Developing proper dsk mitigating action plan is crucial for minimizing potential losses,

6. Monitoring the risks by assigoed gloup and responsible parties.

h) Compliance risk
Compliance risk is exposrue to legal penalties, financial forfeiture and material loss an organization faces
when it fails to act in accordance with industry laws and regulations, intemal policies or prescribed best
practices. Compliance dsk is also sometimes known as integdty risk.
Mitigation of compliance risk
l. Establish and implement the compliance dsk management framework based on criteda and standards
set by the authority.
2. ENures that employees at all levels fully understand their individual roles and responsibilities in
implementing compliancc risk management framework.
3. Ensurcs ongoing compliance training that covers compliance rcquirements for all business lines at
different regulatory.
4. Submit compliancc risk management report to the Audit Committee.
i) Anti Money Laundering (AML) Risk
Actions that show crime assets as incomc from a legitimate source to hide the illegal source ofmoney are
Called moncy laundering, and with the development of tcchaology, money laundedng events are
increasing. At this point, businesses need. Money laundering (AML) Risk Assessment, an analltical
process applied to a busincss to measure the possibility ofmoney laundering or terrodst financing.
Mitigation of Anti Money Laundering (AML) Risk
l. Understanding the aspects of Money Laundering & Tcrlorist Financing risk, management exhibits
strong commitment to compliance.

2, The Authority approvcd an AML & CFT compllance program that includes adequate policies,
procedures, controls, and information systems.

3. In order to ensure AML compliance, CICL construct Central Compliance Unit and afiange training for
all the officials ofCICL.
4. Crystal lnsurance Company Limited takes necessary steps immodiatcly against suspicious activity or
substantive violations of law.
5. The Compliance and controls system of the company is promptly adapt the changes in intemational
lists regardirg AML & CFT issues.
j) Information Technology Risk
CICL has an ICT audit team under HIAC. which has been formed to conducts IT audit in each branch on
a periodic basis and provides suggestions to higher management. Tho tcam also assesses the IT related
risks faced by the oompany and suggests appropriate measures to mitigate risk.

2.33 Disclosure of departures lrom l'ew requirements of IFRS due to mandatory compliance of
Insurance Act's requirements
The management of Crystal Insuance Company Limited has followed the principles oflFRS consistently
in preparation of the tinancial statements to that extent as applicable to the company. Some requirements
of Insurance Act 1938 (as ameflded in 2010) and Insurance Rules 1958 and regulations contradict with
IFRS. As such th€ company has depaded tiom thosc contradictory requirements of IFRS in order to
cornply with the rules and regulations of IDRA whiclr are disclosed below:
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i) Insuranse Act 1938 (as amended in 2010) has issued templates for financial statements which has to be

followed by all general and life insurance companies. CICL followed the guidelines of IDRA and

presented financial statements accordingly.

ii) Investments in quoted shares and unquoted sharcs revalued at the period end at market prico and as per

book value oflast audited Balance Sheet respectively. Provisions are created by netting offany unrealized
gair/(loss) adsing at the period end date as per industry practice which has been widely practice in
insurance sector in Bangladesh. However as per rcquirements of IFRS 9 investmont in sharcs falls either

under "at fair value through profit and loss account" or under "fair value through other comprehensive

inoome" where any change in the fair value at the period-end is taken to profit and loss account or other
comprehensive income respectively.

iii) Gcncral provision on insurance premium and re-insurance premium are croatad as per Insurance Act
1938 (as amended 2010) . However such general provision cannot satisfy the corditions as per IAS 37. At
the period end the CICL has recognized provision of BDT 192,502,593/- as balance of Ilud and

liabilities in the balance sheet under liabilities.
iv) As per IDRA guidelines, financial inskuments are categorized, recognized and measured differently
from those prescribed in IFRS 9. Disclosures in the prescribed templates of IDRA guidelines are

disclosed only.

L
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3.00 Share capital
Authorized capital
100,000,000 ordinary shares ofTk.l0.00 each

Issued, subscribed and paid up capital
40,000,000 ordinary shares ofTk.10/- each tully paid up in cash

C sharehol

3.01 s onsor shareholders

4.00 Reserve and surplus
Reserve lbr exceptional losses (notc no- 4.01)
Retained earnings (P&L App. A,lC)
lnvestment fluctuation fund (note no- 4.02)
General reserve (note no-4.03)

Total

Amount in taka
2023 2022

1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000

400,000,000 400,000,000

Amount in tk.
240,000,000

58,53',7,430

100,000

101,362,570

400,000,000

Percentage
60.000%
t4.634%
0.025%

25.311%

100.000%

Amount in Tk.
40,000,000

40,000,000

8,000,000

9,000,000

8,000,000

8,000,000

9,550,000

20,000,000

20,000,000

40,000,000

8,000,000

12,000,000

3,750,000

3,000,000

2,700,000

4,000,000

2,000,000

2,000,000

240,000,000

Percentage

10.00%

10.00%

2.00%

225%
2.00%

2.00%

2 3901,

5.00%

5.00%

10.00%

2.00%

3.00%

0.94%

0.150/o

0.68%

1.00%

0.50%

0:0%
60.00%

59,892,199
(26,240 ,19 t )

10,000,000

519,885,961
50,091,567
(6,s14,961)

9,000,000

634,611,106 572,432,s66

4.01 Re$erve for exceptional losses
Reserve for exceptional losses kcpt as per paragraph 6 of thc fourth schedule of lncome Ta"x Act 2023. Detailed
calculation is given below:
Openiog balance
Ileserve made during the yeif
Closing balance s90,959,697 519,885,963

Reserve for Iosses made the l0o/o on Gross Premium Tk. 710 't3'7 342
Amount-2022

29,1'73,933

28,116,6:19

706,395

'7,t91,917

519,885,963
7 r,073,734

451,400,684

68,485,279

Category of shareholders No, of shares
Director and sponsor sharcholders (3.01) 24,000,000
Institute 5,t]53,7,13

Foreign 10,000

General public 10,136,25'7

Grand Total 40,000,000

Name No. of shares
AbdLrllah Al-Mahmud Chairman ,1,000,000

Abdullah Hasan Dircctor 4,000,000

A.H.M. Mozarnmel Hoque Director 800,000

Md. l'a.jul tslam Director 900,000

Farzana Munny Director 800,000

Shahzadi Begum (D€ceased) Director 800,000

Farhana Danesh Director 955,000

Nabila Mahmud 2,000,000

Soera Zahir Dircctor 2,000,000

Nusrat Mahmud Director 4,000,000

Arafat Rashid Ditector 800,000

Asoke Ranjan Kapuria Sponsor Shar€holdcr 1,200,000

Iqbal Hasan Mahmood Sponsor Shareholder 375,000

Sarah Hasein Mahmood Sponsor Shareholder 300,000

Rubyat l-allvcer Huda Sponsor Shareholder 270,000

Surava Akter Tondra Sponsor Shareholder 400,000

Khalid Al Mamun Sponsor Shareholder 200,000

Zarif Al Mamun Sponsor Shareholder 200,000

Total 24,000,000

Particulars Gross premium Exceptional loss Amount -2023
Fire insurance

Marine oargo insurancc
Marinc hull insurance
Motor insurance
Miscellaneous insuralce

316,089,730
262,920,3s2

t4,t91,261
28,235,962

89,300,036

t0%
t0%
10%
t0%
t0%

31,608,913
)ar 7q7 0't5

1,4t9,t26
2,823,596
8,930,004

710,737,342Total
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AmoDnt in takr
2022

4.02 Investment fluctuation fund
Oper ng balance
Provision made during the year

Closing balance

4,03 General reserve
Opening balance
Resewe made during the year

Closing balance

5.00 Balance of funds and accounts
Fire insurance revenue account
Marine cargo insurance revenue account
Marinc hull insurance revenue account
Motor insurance revenue account
Miscellaneous. insurance revenue account

ClosinB balaIIce

6.00 Leasc liability
Opening balance
Addition during the period
Re-payment of lease liability
Closing balance

8.00 Deferred tax liability
Accounting base writtelr down value ofproperty, palnt and equipments
Tax base written down value ofproperty, palnt and equipments
Taxable temporary difference
Tax rate

Deferred tax liability

Deferred tax liability/assets
Opening balance
Differed tax (income)/expenses

Closing balance

(6,s4:1,96:l)
(19,695,827)

(26,240,191) (6,544.964)

9,000,000
1,000,000

8,000,000
1,000,000

r0,000,000 9,000,000

192,502,593 __-J21,873aee

The above balance represent reserve for unexpired isk @ 40Yo of premium income of the year for fire, marine
cargo, motor and miscellaneous insurance business and @ 100% of premium income of the year for marine hull
busincss.

84,896,684
78,041,061

3,26t,928
t0;t 55,01'1

15,54'7,904

11 ,619,38',7

14,'126,926
('7,195,638)

83,074,095

88,464,522
1,996,589

12,214,805

7 ,123,289

9,283,'791

6,634,073
(4,238,480)

18,610,675 11,679,387

7,00 Deposit premium
The below mentioned amouflt includes premium received against cover notes for which policies havo not been
issued within 3lst Deoember, 2023. Wlile the risks against non-marine and marine hull have been assurned from
the issuance of cover notes, risks against marine cargo have not been assumed until shipment advices are provided.
After receiving of shipment advices, policies are issued for marine cargo Busincsses.

117,830,397 156,218,267

tt'7,830,39',7

286,351,528

281,542,685
(4,808,842)

3',1.50%

4,646,109
151,572,158

317,293,605
304,804,960
(r2,488,645)

3',7 .50%
r,803,315 4,683,242

To calculate tax base writtefl down value we charged depreciation on property, plant and equipments as per the 3rd
schedule oflncome Tax Aat 2023.

4,683,242
(2,819,927)

5,302,433
(619,191)

lvt4<_30

\

1 ,315 ___!@2!2_

2023

Fire insurance

Marinc cargo insurancc
Marine hull insurance
Motor insruance

Miscellaneous insurance

Closing balance

1,871,951
(8,416,9r 5)
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Amount in taka
2023 2022

9.00 Estimated liability ln respect of Outstanding claims whether due or intimated
Fire insurance business

Marine cargo insurance business

Marine hull insurance business

Motor insurance business

Miscellaneous insurance business

Closing Balance

11.00 Sundry creditors
A. Managemcnt expense
Audit fees

Fuel and lubricant
Fees and oharges

Motor vehiole

Oilice rent
Oft-rce decoration
Provident fund
Printing and stationary
Renewal and registration fee

Salary and allowances

Telephone bill
VAT at source payable

Tax at source payable

VAT on office rert payable

Total
B.0ther payables

Advanca deposit (ol1ioe premises)

Provision for income tax (note no- I l.0l)
Stamp duty
Security deposit
VAT payable*
Total

Closing balance (A+B)

11.01 Provision for income tax
Opening balance
Provision ofincome tax for the period (note no- 11.02)

Tax paid for income year - 2022 (asscssment year 2023-2024)
Tax paid for the assessmont year 2020-2021

Closing balance

___E1i!2i43
A1l the claims against which the compa[y received intimations within 3lst December, 2023 have been taken into
consideration while estimating the liability ofoutstanding claims.

49,816,603

62,035,335

2,850,000

4,120,159

991,424

83,439,443

63,'738,222

4,964,734

t99,844

19,1,558,034

89,r r6,97r
(69,640,2',7',7)

214,034,728
99,614,264

(37 ,987,699)
275,661,294 214,034,728

This baLance represent the due amount to Sadharan Bima Corporation (SBC) for rc-insurance arrangements.

480,000

50,000

622,',750

1,303,9r 4

5,826,854
7q )4,

9,968,718
12,500

z;7'16,032
3,013,715

56,336

530,000
16,500

599,597

3,000,000

t,7 60

3,25',7 ,154
1,500,000

t00,000
100,000

10,7 44,'736

11,500

2,323,880
3,343,5'7 6

103,837

24,190,111 25,632,840

1,363,170

85,424,273
22,284,1'7 4

80,000
3,340,272

1,192,170
'7 |,28',7 ,135
23,064,318

80,000
I 707 715

112,491,889 99,331,418

136,682,000 124,964,258

* Vat payable represent amount payble to govt. treasury for the monlh of Deoember 2023, whioh was paid iu
January 2024.

't 1,28't ,t35
20,065,815
(5,928,677)

64,628,{123

15,700,955

(9.042,643\

H
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85,424,273 11,287,135

____112,!13E2L

10.00 Amounts due to other persons or bodics carrying on insurance business
Opening balance
Palable for the year

PaidAdjusted during the period
Closing balance



Amount in taka
2023

11.02 Prrrvision of income tax lbr the period
Protit before tax as per profit and loss account
Reserve fbr exceptional losses

lnterest on Bangladesh govt. treasury bond

Realised gain on investment in shares

Dividcnd inoomc
Provision for workcrs profit participation fund

Rusiness income (tax rate 37.509/.)
Profit on dividend incomc
Realised gain on investment in shares

Interest on Bangladcsh go1t. trcasury bond
Total income
a) Tax on busincss incomc @37 .50"/o

b) Tax on realised gain on shares @ 15%

c) Tax on dividend incone @ 2OY.

Tax provision for the period
* Tax rate calculated @37.57o according to Escal y|"ar 2023-2024

12.00 Unpaid/Unclaimed dividend
Opening balance
Dividend payable for the year

Tax deducted at source on dividend
Paid durning the year

Closing balance

13.00 Provision lbr workers prolit participation lund (WPPF)
Balancc at bcginning oIthc lcar
Provision ofWPPF lor the year

Paid duing the year

Closing balance

Provision of WPPF for the year-end
Profit bcforc tax and WPPF

Profit before tax (Prolit before tax and WPPF/1.05)

Provision for WPPF (5yoof Prolit before tax)

1,1.00 Property, plant and equipments
Cost at the begiruing ofthe year

Addition during the year

A, Cost at the year-end

Accumulated depreciation
Balance at the begiming ofthe period

Addition during the pcriod
B. Balance at the period end

Writtcn down value at the period end (A-B)

15.00 Advance against land and oflice Space

Opening balance

Secutity deposit against land (RAJUK)

Closilrg balrnce

146,0t3,26't
(7 t ,o'13 ,7 34)
(3,79s,041)

(13,968,874)
(4,931,392)
(6,9s3,013)

45,29t,214
4,93 t,392

13,968,874

3,795,041

61,986,520
16,984,205
2,095,331

986,2'18

130,239,341
(68,485 ,279)

(3,499,388)
(9,896,79 r)
(6,269 ,8',12)
(6,201,873)

35,886,137
6,269,8',72

9,896,791

3,499,388
55,552,188
13,457,301

989,679
|,253,9'7 4

20,065,815 t5,700,955

2,618,579
40,000,000
(4,581,284)

(35,083,517)

2,834,782
40,000,000
(4,s1r,825)

(35,7 04,37 8)

2,953,718

6,20t,8',73

6,953,013
(6,201,873)

t46,013,26'1
t39,060,254

6,4t4,20',7

6,20t,8',73
(6,414 ,20',7)

6,953,013 ______5,20L,873

t30,239,341
t24 ,01'7 ,46'7

6,201,873

s30,145,900 523,601,838

523,601,838
6,544,062

23',7,258,103

35,131,132

497,288.205
26,3 r 3,633

zjt ,'7 43 ,034
35,515,069

272,589,235 231,258,t03

2s7,556,665 ___286i4311s
Schedule for the detail ofprcperty, plant and equipments presented in Annexure A (Fixed Assets Schedule)

12,000,000

I 1,450,000

12,000,000

000

In 2012, the company booked a 10 katha plot in the Basundhara Riverview Green Town project at a total cost of
tk.12,000,000 and paid the total amount (i.e. tk.12,000,000), but the land rcgistration process is yet to be

completed. Additionally, the company made a security deposit of tk. 11,450,000 during the year to join a bid

process arranged by RAJUK for a 9.16 katha plot of the Purbachol new town project.

2

32
c

2022

_____2&1881e

6,9s3,013

_--_laq!!Jgq_



Amount in taka
2023 2022

16.00 Investments
Bangladesh govt. treasury bond (note no-16.01)
lnvestment in Veltura Asset Management*
Investment in shares-Fair value ofthe shares (note no-16.02)

Closing balance

16.01 Bangladesh govt. treasury bond (BGTB)
Opening balance

Purohased during the year

Encashed du ng the year

Closing b.lancc

16.02 Investment in shares (Fair value of the sharcs)
Opening balancc
Opening oirsh balancc on B/O acccounts

Investment during the year

IPO retum
Withdrawal during thc ycar
Realised gain

Closing ledger balance
Fccs and charges

Unrealised gain/loss

17.00 Investment property
Opening brlance
Depreoiation during the year

Closing balance

18.00 Right ofuse (ROU) assets

opening balance
Additior dwing the year
Adjustment with advance office rent

Amortisation of ROU assets

Closing balance

19.00 Insurance stamps
lnsurance stamps

60,000,000
50,000,000

199 ,092,8',1 4

50,000,000

214,591,859

309,092,874 264,591,859

*The company invested 5,000,000 shares of Venftra Capital Management Limited during the year 2023 and

awaiting for IDRA's approval.

_____09,9!g,qp!_
lnvestments with fixed maturity, that the management has intention and ability 10 hold till maturity are classified as

held to mahrity.

50,000,000
10,000,000

21,1,591,859

22t,296
I t6,2'13

(r0,000,000)
13,968,874

(102,21',7)

(7,384)
(19,695.827)

30,949,8'72
(2,15s,008)

30,000,000
20,000,000

5

Closins balance __199,q9&q2L ___2_U,591,8!2_
Investmert in shares has bccn stated in the statement of financial position at markel value as of 3lst December
2023. U calised gain/loss is shown in a separate fund called "lnvestment fluctuation fund" on the liability side of
the Balance Shcct.

216,205,508

r0,650,806
(3,13r,550)
(s,000,000)

9,896,',791

(5,60',7,29t)

(3,490)

(8,116,9r 5)

33,104,880
(2,155,008)

28,194 ,864 30,949 ,872

The let-out office spaces of Agrabad and Jessore were recognized as investment propefiy under IAS 40, initially
recognized at cost plus directly attributable cost to the asset.

).2,t36,t12
r9,031,504

(l0.514,284)

t4,823,t52
6,634,073

(2,52t,340)
(6;799,1t3)

20,653,392 _____a&saL

1,584,825

t26,49'7,49',1

11,705,585

113,596,216

12,901,281

dA

I

138,203,082 126,491,497

20.00 Amount due from other persons or bodies carrying on insurance business
Receivable from SBC
Opening balance
Addition during the year

Received/Adjusted during the year

Closing balance

1,961,787

33



Amount in taka
2023 2022

21.00 Accrued interest
Accrued but not due
Accrued interest ofFDR accounts

Accrucd interest ofBangladest gor-t. treasury bond

Closing balance
The amounts represent interest accrued but not received during the period.

11,134,642

630,573

12,3 89,504
7S I 41)

____JLJ_65i11_

22.00 Sundry delrtors (includilg advances, deposits and prepayments)
Advance against oftlce rent

Advance against office salary
Advance against motor vehicle
Advance aginst printirg bill
Dividend receivable

Sccurity dcposit against office rent
Receivabie from CICL employees provident fund
Advance jnterest paid on Bangladesh govt. treasury bond
Advanco income tax (note no-22.01)

Closing Balance

22,01 Advance income tax
Balance at the beginning ofthe year
Advance tax deduction against interest on FDRs, STD A./C and BGTBs
Advance tax deposited against vehicle
Advanoe tax deposit against office rcnt
Deduction against dividend on shares

Advance tax paid for the current income year

Closing balance

23.00 Cash and bank balances
Cash in hand
BO accormt halance

Cash at banks on STD accounts

Cash at ba.ks on CD accounts

Closi[g balance

25,00 Depreciation
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (note no-14)
Depreciation on investment prcperty (note no-17)

Total

26.00 Interest illcome
A. Interest received from
FDR accouflts
STD accounts
Bangladesh govt. treasury bond

B. Opening accrued i[terest on
FDR accounts

Bangladesh go\t. treasury bond

1,500,000

750,000

3 r 0,619
361,9'72

50 516 1

76,264,651 63,558,756

50,516,867
6,226,036
t,2t2,500

t2t,202
98r,2',78

2,000,000

40,'144,589

4,471.236
1,462,500

89,567
I,248,9'7 5

2,500,000

148,625

t02,2t'7
28,049,0',79

2,908,583

234,581
22t,296

21,41',7,462

20,138,867

___gzq!Eq5 42,012,212

2,1.00 !'ixed deposit receipt (FDR) with banks and {inancial institutes _J,005_47fr._ 984,841,617

'fhe above balance includes investment in banks and financial institutes, which arc rcadily convortible to cash at

short notice.

35,331, 132

2,155,008

36,7',17,320

532,997

3,917,900

35,515,069

2,155,008

37,486,1,10 _____11_fr.9JI7

33,792,58,1

319,176
3,043,060

41,228,217 37,214,820

12,389,504 t6,065,210
291,104

1,'756,543

4,94',7 ,997
6,400.000

9

I,150,000

50t,9'79
450,241

61,057,883
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13,142,936 16,362,374

___13J]4&!_

2,250,143

7 ,869,t57

_____gu!z,q!L ____lgEgEqL



Amount in taka
2023

C. Closing accrued interest on
FDR aocounts

Bangladesh govt. treasrry bond

Interest income for the year ended (A+C-B)

27.00 Other income
Miscellaneous income

Office rent (investment property)

Garage rent (investment property)

Service charge on co-insurance and refund premium
Realized gain/loss from sale of listed companies sharcs

Fofeiture amount of provident fund
Dividend income from listed companies shares

Total

28.00

29.00

14,134,643
630,573

12,389,504

14,765,2t5 13,t42,931

_____12J!U2q_ ____!J25J!L

41 ,414
2,228,4t 6

36,000
'7,',700

13,968,874

191,360

1,931,392

238,933
2,00r,840

36,000
12,955

9,896,',791

6,269,872

62 59

Management expenses

AGM and annual conl'erence

Cable and internet bill
Car allowance
Car maintcnancc

Charge allowance

Uonveyance

Flarned leave-encashment

Electicity,water and gas bill
Entertainment
Festival bonus

l'uel and lubricant
Garage rent

Gift alld tips
Insurance premium
IPO application fees

Legal expenses

Meeting cxpcnscs

Office maintenance
Paper and periodicals
Postage and revenue

Printing and stationary
Professional lies
Provident fund
Press release

Scholarship

Salary and allowance

Service charge of co-insurance

Repair and maintenance

Telephone (Mobilc and rcsidential)

165,444

827,693
18,343,167

310,258
1,994,000
1,536,996

685,887
t,392,8'7 t
2,t31,323

11,038,821

1,015,480

85,975

r32,894

532,500

161,85 5

t,t7'7 ,802
t23,259
'7 55,',l t4

4,081,376

360,000
4,284,700

345,38 r

228,500
1)Q 17 \ A))

394,984
q)o 0)5

1,9 15

698,037

786,546
23,346,500

'728,',l',l9

1,753,000

|,2',73,41t
809,880

1,017,069

2.118,429

12,25',7 ,946
875,765

61,500
442,000
t12,496

3,000

t02,229
|,240,4'71

192,782

3,849,167
18,37 5

3,'7 4t,632
80,800

2'/ 8,516
131,r 60,084

50,1,587

129.37',7

I '706 I03

4

30,947,54t
24,318,301

526,008

2,657,084
4,0),9,346

2',7 ,024,929
2',7,062,591

415,043
3,0,11,681

1,855,423

35

____114J,155_ _____]_915.0J9.1_

Agent commission
Class ofbusiness
Fire insurance
Marine cargo insurance
Marine hull insurance
Motor insurance

Miscellaneous insurance
'I'otal



Telephone (Office )
Tanning fees

Travelling allowance

utility bill
vAT paid on office rent
Wages

Management expenses except public sector business
Management expenses for public sector business (PSB)

Total

Class€s ofbusin€ss

Management erp€nses

Total management
expenses for 2023Expenses against dir€ct

PSB business

shoiYn hy SBC

Fire insurance

Marine cargo insurancc
Marine hull insurance

Motor insurance
Miscellaneous insurance

94,264,248
'7 4,0'7 2,004

1,602,18'1

8,093,309
12,242.6',12

49.54%

38.93%
0.84%
4.25%
6.43%

1,140,25'7

1,986,494

680,788
180,192

3,766,6s8

95,404,505
'76,058,497

2,282,9'15

8,2'13,501

16,009,329

Total 190,274,119 100"/o 7,7s43AA 198,028,807

r98,028,807 203 11,943

Total maIagemenl
expenses for 2022

93,422,813

8',7 ,5',7 5 ,452
I 75,) qrO

10,304,107

10,256,643

203,311,943

30.00 Events after the reporting period
The board of directors at l04th board meeting held on 18 February 2024, proposed 7.007o cash dividend and

10.00% stock dividend for the year ended 3l December 2023. Security deposit (presented in note no-15.00) oftk.
I 1,450,000 made against bid process of 9.16 katha plot of Purbachol New Town a Project of RAJUK refunded to
the company at the erld ofthe January 2024.

31.00 Liability for VAT
The liabilities of VAT amounting to Tk.3,340,2'72 only for the month of 31st December 2023 which has

subsequently been deposited in go!t. treasury on January, 2024.

32.00 Tax assessment position:

Details have been shown in the Annexure -B

33.00 Net asset value (NAD per share

Assets (A)
Propety, plant and equipments
Advance against land and office Space

lnvestments
Investment propelty
Right ofuse (ROU) asscts

Insurance stamps

Amount due from othcr persons or bodies carrying on insurance business

Accrued intcrost
Sundry debtors (including advances, deposits and prepayments)

Cash and cash equivalents
Total assets

Liabitities (B)
Balance of funds and accounts

Lease liability
Deposit premium
Deferred tax liability
Estinated liability iD respect ofOutstanding claims whethcr due or intimated

Amounts due to other persons or bodies carrying on insuralcc business

Sundry creditors

Unpaid./Unclaimcd dividend
Provision for workers profit participation l'und (WPPF)

Total liabilitics

257,556,66s
23.450.000

109.092,874

28;t94,864
20,653,392

1,584,825

138,203,082
14,'7 65,2t5
'7 6,264,65t

t,03'7,056,t22
r,907 ,421,691

192,502,593

r 8,610,675
117,830,397

1,803,315

119,813,521

27 5,661,294
136,682,000

2,953,'t78

6,953,013
872,810,586

Amount in taka
2023 2t)22

321,009
87,665

149,459

3,914,12t
t,20'7,373

405,5s0

295,',l 64

196,650

321,108

3,236,t11
1,219,9s6

289,750

190,27 4,11,9

7,7s4344
196,100,824

1,211,118

286,313,735
12,000,000

264,59t,859
30,949,872
12,136,1'73

t,96'7 ,'78'7

126,49',7,49'7

13,t42,936
63,558,756

I ,026,859 ,829
1,838,048,443

192,8'7 3 ,299
1t,679,387

156,218,26',1

4,683,242

214,034,728
124,964,258

2,618,5'79

6,201,8',73

865,6r5,877

3

Expense
ratio(%)



Net asscts Yaluc (C) = (A-B)

2023 2022

t,034,611,105

40,000,000

912,432,566

40,000,000

Net assets value per share(C/D) 25.87 24.31

34.00 Earning per share (EPS)
Earning pcr share (EPS) has been computed by dividiog the basic earning by the numbel of ordinary shares

outstanding at the end ofthe year as per IAS 33 Earnings per share

N()t profit after tax and WPPF (rote no-34.01)

Number of shares outstanding

Earning per share (EPS)

t2t,87 4,366
40,000,000

108,955,703

40,000,000

2.12

34.01 Net prolit after tax and W?PF
Net profit for the year brought down

Provision for companies income tax

Provision for dcferrcd tax
Provision for WPPF
Net prolit after tax and WPPF

35.00 Net operating cash flow per share (NOCFPS)
Ncl cash flows lrom operating acti! ities

Numbcr of shares outstanding

Net operating cash flow per share (NOCFPS)

36.00 Reconciliatio1r of net income with cash flows from operating activities

Net profit before income tax
Adjustment for!
Depreciation

lnterest income

Dividend income

Gain on sale of shares

Office rent (investment property)

Garage rent (investment property)

Change in operating assets

Increase/(decrease) the balancc of fund
Increase/(decrease) the premium deposit
Ilcrease/(decreasc) ofamount due to other persons or bodies
Increase/(decrease) of outstanding claims
Increase/(decrease) of sundry creditor except tax payable

(lncrease)/decrease of stock ofstamps and others
(Increase)/decrease ofadvance, deposit and prepayment except AIT
(lncrease)/decrease of amount due from other persons or bodics

WPPF amount paid
lncome tax paid

Net cash generated from operating activities (indirect method)

Net cash generated from operating activities (direct method)

146,013 ,26',7

(20,065,815)

2,879,921
(6,9s3,013)

69,659,098
40,000,000

t21,874,366 ___$,2$43

130,239,341

(15,700,955)

619,191

(6,201,873)

243,189,044

40,000,000

1.7 4

NOCFPS decreased by 71.38% from the previous year due to decrease ofpremium collection and increase ofclaim
pa),rnent during the year.

6,08

146,0t3,267 130,239,341

(26,529,038) (r4,s29,808)

(370,706)
(38,387,870)

61,626,566
(32,528,122)

,1,841,753

382,962
(10,682,102)
(r 1,70s,s85)

(6,201,8?3)
(t 6,'7 99 ,s s4)

3'7,610,0',77

(33,99s,382)

t6,269 ,8-12)
(9,896,791)

(2,001,840)
(36,000)

34,335,193
13,366,663

19,1't 6,694

84,'782,246

13,20 i,781
(649,348)

(s,384,715)
(12,901,280)

(6,4t4,207)
t2,333,515

(49,825,13r) 127,479,512

_____!9,052J98 ___24J_99&4

__--!2,q2,q98

Amount in taka

Number ofoutstanding shares (D)

3.05

3'1,486,t40
(42,8s0,496)
(4,93t,392)

(13,968,874)
(2,228,4t6)

(36,000)

37
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Amount in taka
2023 2022

38.00 Borrowitrg position of the company
No oredit facility under any contract other than trade credit availablc iu course ofbusiness were availed by Crystal

Insurance Company Limited for the year ended 3l December, 2023.

39.00 Foreigncurrencytransactions
The company paid tk. 5,017,948.36 in foreign currencies as re-insurance ceded premium and did not eam any

income in foreign currencies on account ofroyalty, technical expefi and professional advisory fees, intcrcst ctc.

38

/<@\qw

\

37.00 Contingent asset/liability:
There is no contingent asset or liability of the company as at 31-12-2023 except the following:

Contingent liability lbr vAT demand

The Commissioner of Customs Excise & VAT Conmissionerate, Dhaka (South), Dhaka vide their letter No.

8/q'{s/^d(\oq)fq +rii/fi5w)l, Efiil, \8/oh/to)l i'. demanded an amount of VAT tk. 2,933,948.00 and Interest

amount Taka 1,173,579 for thc period 2016. The Company has submitted necessary papers and doouments vide

letter No. FrsRfr,{it/}€,&cl</qo)Vsaqt sTR{, )b/)o/\o)l against such unacceptable demand ofthe Commissiooer

of Customs, Excise & VAT Commissionerate, Dhaka (South), Dhaka. Subsequcntly management of CICL also

appealed to the Appealed T bunal of Customs, Excise & VAT and the authority has not given final decision till
datc.
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Crystal Insurance Company Limited
FORM "AA''

Classilied summary of assets as at 31st December,2023

sl.
no,

Classes of assets
Amount in taka Remarks

2022

I Property, plant and equipments 257,556,665 286,343,135 Realisable value

2 Advance against land arld office Space 23 450 000 12,000,000 f air Value

Investments 309,092,8'7 4 264,591,859 W.D.V

Investment propcrty 30,949,872 Cost

5 Right ofuse (ROU) assets 70,653,392 12,t36,173 Cost

6 Insurance stamps 1,584,825 |,967 ,18'l RealisabLe value

,7 Amount due from other persons or bodies

carrying on insurance business
138,203,082 126,497,491 Realisable value

8 Accrucd interest 14,7 65,215 13,142,936 Realisable value

9
Sundry debtors (including advances, deposits

and prepa),ments)
16,264,651 63,558,756 W.D.V

t0 Cash and cash equivalents I ,03'1 ,056 ,L22 1,076,859,829 At Cost

Total 1,907,421,697 1,838,048,443

M. Mahluzur Rahman FCA
ChiefFinancial OlIoer

F Danesh

Director

SM
Chief Executive Officer(CC)

Chairman
NI Hoque

4

Dhaka, LB February 2024
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Income
Year

Assessment

Year
Status

2001 2008-09
The tax authodty assessed tax tk. 13,366,504 with simple interest tk. 1,855,449/-as per demand notice

U/S 135. lst & 2nd appeal completed. Further, Appeal has been filed to the honourable High Court

Division and the decision is before Court Division.

2008 2009- 10

lncome tax retum was submittcd to Deputy Commissioner of Taxes, Circle -Large Taxpayer Unit

(LTU), Zone-LTU Dhaka U/S 8288. As per demand notice U/S 135 prcsent tax demrnd is 1k.28,437l-

but an application has been made by CICL U/S 173 for refund adjusttrent oftk.506,47ll-

2009 2010-11

tn"o.J tu* return was submitted to Deputy Commissiooer oI Taxes, Cirole -Large Taxpayer Unit
(LTU), Zone-LTU Dhaka U/S 82B8. As per demand notice U/S 135 present tax dcmand is nil but an

application has been made by CICL U/S 173 for refund tk. 1,122,09'7 /- as DCT charged excess tax .

2010 201t-t2
The tax authority assessed tax 1k.9,866,812 with simple interest tk. 1,488,007/-as per demand

U/S 135 but appcal has been made against the learned CT (A) order to Taxes Appellalc lribunal

Status order has been the lcarned ate Tribunal Division

2011 2012-13
The tax authority assessed tax 1k.22,564,171 with simple inte.est tk. 2,993,477l-as pcr demand notice

U/S 135 dated 23.04.2015 and an appcal llled to the Taxes Appellate Division and Tribunal hcaring

has been leted- al endin to the Honouable court.

2012 2013-14
The ta,\ authority assessed tax tk. 23,511,328 with simple interest tk. 3,317,280/-as per demand notice

U/S 135 dated 15.03.2017 and an appeal filed to the Taxes Appellate Division and Tribunal hearing

has been completed. Appeal pending to the Honourable High court

2013 2014-15
The tax authority assessed tax tk 2,70,81,097 with simple interest tk. 4l.l9.l I l/-as per demand

U/S 135 dated 15.03.2011 and an appeal filed to the Taxes Appellate Division and Tribunal hearing

has been completed. Appeal pending to th(} Honoumble High court.

2011 2015-16
Ilcorne tnx return was submittcd to Deputy commissioner of Taxes, Circle _Large Tdxpayer Unit
(LTU), Zonc-LTU Dhaka U/S 82BB. The DCT Cettiry that " Assessment has been complctcd for the

assessment year 2015-20I 6"

2016-17
The tax autho ty assessed tax tk.47,862,942 with simple interest tk. 6,134,490/-as per demand

U/S 135 dated 27.06.2019. lst Appeal pending to the leamed CT (A)

20t6 2017-18
IT Retum has been selected undcr audit. Assessment has been done r/s 82BB/82BB(I)/83(2). Applied

fbr certifled for fi li the lst A eal.

2017 2018-19
Income tax retum was submittcd to Deputy commissioner of Taxes, Circle -Large Taxpayer Unit

(LTU), Zone-LTU Dhaka U/S 82BB. The DCT Ccrtify that " Assessment has been completed for

assessment year 201 8-20I9"

2018 2019-20
Income tax retum was submitted to Deputy corrnissioner of Taxes, Circ le -Large Taxpayer Unit

Zone-LTU Dhaka U/S 82BB."

2020-21
lnoome tax retum was submitted to Deputy commissioncr of Taxes, Circle -Large Taxpayer Unit

Zone-LTU Dhaka U/S 82B8."

2020 202t-22
Income tax refum was submitted to Deputy commissioner of Taxes, Circ le -Large Taxpayer Unit

TU Zone-LTU Dhaka U/S 82BB."

2021 2022-23
Income tax refllm was submitted to Deputy colffnissioner of Taxes, Circle -Large Taxpayer Uni

Zone-LTU Dhaka U/S 8288."

2022 2023-21
Income tax retum was submittcd to Deputy cornmissioner of Taxes, Circle -Large Taxpaycr Unit

L Zone-LTU Dhaka U/S 8288."

Crystal Insurance Company Limited
Income tax assessment position (up to 37.12.2023)

Annexure-B
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